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' Office of the City Attorney
TO: Mayor and City Commissioners DATE: September 1, 2011
FROM: City Attorney
CONSENT

SUBJECT: =~ Elvan Moore, II vs. City of Gainesville, Florida; Chief Norman Botsford as
Chief of the Gainesville, Florida Police Department; Officer Robert Kennedy,

in his Official and Individual capacity; Eighth Judicial Circuit, Court Case No.
01-2011-CA-4417

Recommendation: The City Commission 1) authorize the City Attorney and/or -
Special Counsel if insurance coverage is available to represent the City of
Gainesville and the City employee acting in the course and scope of his
employment, with the consent and waiver of potential conflict by the City
Commission and by said City employee, and; 2) the City Commission
authorize the City Manager to execute a consent and waiver of potential
conflict on behalf of the City in the case styled Elvan Moore, II vs. City of
Gainesville, Florida; Chief Norman Botsford as Chief of the Gainesville,
Florida Police Department: Officer Robert Kennedy, in his Official and
Individual capacity: Eighth Judicial Circuit, Court Case No, 01-2011-CA-4417.

On August 30, 3011, the City and Officer Kennedy were served with a Summons and Complaint
filed by Elvan Moore, II in the Circuit Court. The Plaintiff alleges that he is a victim of false
arrest, false imprisonment, battery and malicious conduct which occurred during his arrest on
August 26, 2007. He claims to have sustained severe and permanent traumatic injuries,

including mental, psychological and emotional damages. Plaintiff is seeking compensatory
damages, costs, and attorney’s fees.

In the same complaint, Mr. Moore also filed suit individually against the City officer who
arrested him. In this lawsuit, the interests of the City employee and the City appear, at this time,
to not be in conflict. However, the possibility does theoretically exist for a conflict of interest to
develop at some time in the future between the City’s interests and those of the City employee.

Therefore, informed consent confirmed in writing by both the City and the City employee is
appropriate.

Prepared by:

Submitted by: /A h
Marion J. Radsén, -’ [/
“City Attorney
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FORM 1.997. CIVIL COVER SHEET

The civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service
of pleadings or other papers as required by law. This form shall be filed by the plamtiff or petitioner for the use
of the Clerk of the Court for the purpose of reporting judicial workload data pursuant to Florida Statutes section
25.075.

L CASE STYLE

INTHE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
IN AND FOR ALACHUA COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

CIVIL DIVISION
ELVAN MOORE II,
Plaintiff, CASE NO.:
Division: o
V.
CITY OF GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA;
CHIEF NORMAN BOTSFORD
As Chief of the Gainesville, Florida Police Department;
OFFICER ROBERT KENNEDY,
in his Official and Individual capacity,
Defendants,
/

1L TYPE OF CASE
(If the case fits more than one type of case, select the most definitive category.) If the most
descriptive label is a subcategory (is indented under a broader category), place an “x” in both the
main category and subcategory boxes.
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Eminent domain
Auto negligence
Negligence — other

Business governance

Business torts
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Third party indemnification
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Negligent security
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Premises liability — commercial
Premises liability — residential
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Commercial foreclosure $0 - $50,000

Commercial foreclosure $50,001 - $249,999
Commercial foreclosure $250,000 or more

Homestead residential foreclosure $0 — $50,000
Homestead residential foreclosure

$50,001 - $249,999

Homestead residential foreclosure $250,000 or more
Non-homestead residential foreclosure $0 - $50,000
Non-homestead residential foreclosure $50,001 - $249,999
Non-homestead residential foreclosure $250,00 or more
Other real property actions $0 - $50,000

Other real property actions $50,001 - $249 999

Other real property actions $250,000 or more
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Business Transaction
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HIL.  REMEDIES SOUGHT (check all that apply);
§§Monetary;
[l Non-monetary declaratory or injunctive relief:
(1 Punitive

v, NUMBER OF CAUSKES OF ACTION: {17
(Specify)

COUNTI-42U.S.C. § 1983 MATERIAL MISREPRESENTATIONS IN THE
CHARGING AFFIDAVIT (798) IN VIOLATION OF THE FOURTH AND FOURTEENTH
AMENDMENTS

COUNT II - 42 US.C. § 1983 MALICIOUS PROSECUTION IN VIOLATION OF THE
FOURTH, FIFTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS

COUNT III - 42 U.S.C. § 1983 POLICY, PRACTICE OR PROCEDURE

COUNT IV - 42 US.C. § 1983 FAILURE TO TRAIN AND/OR SUPERVISE

COUNT V-42 US.C. § 1983 BATTERY

COUNT VI - FALSE ARREST

COUNT VI - FALSE ARREST

COUNT VIII - FALSE IMPRISONMENT

COUNT IX - FALSE IMPRISONMENT

COUNT X - MALICIOUS PROSECUTION

COUNT X1 - INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF SEVERE EMOTIONAL DISTRESS
COUNT XIi - BATTERY

COUNT XIH - BATTERY

V. IS THIS CASE A CLASS ACTION LAWSUIT?
1] Yes
¥No
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AZ18 IS JURY TRIAL DEMANDED IN COMPLAINT?
[T No

1 CERTIFY that the information I have provided in this cover sheet is accurate to the best of my knowledge and
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
IN AND FOR ALACHUA COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

CIVIL DIVISION
ELVAN MOORE 11,
Plaintiff, CASE NO..
Division:
v,

CITY OF GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA;

CHIEF NORMAN BOTSFORD

As Chief of the Gainesville, Florida Police Department;
OFFICER ROBERT KENNEDY,

in his Official and Individual capacity,

Defendants.
/

COMPLAINT

INTRODUCTION

1. This is an action for damages in excess of Fifteen Thousand and 00/100 Dollars
($15,000.00), exclusive of interest, attorney’s fees and costs and comes within the

jurisdiction of this court.

2. The events giving rise to this complaint occurred or originated in Alachua, County

Florida; specifically within the city limits of Gainesville, Florida.

. This is an action for money damages for the injuries suffered by Plaintiff Elvan Moore II

(a

as a result of negligent conduct, violations of civil and constitutional rights.

4. Throughout Mr. Moore’s investigation and prosecution, Chief Norman BRotsford and

Officer Robert Kennedy showed deliberate indifference towards Mr. Moore’s civil and



1.

constitutional rights by unlawfully seizing, arresting and using excessive force while

arresting him.

That there were numerous complaints levied against the Gainesville Police Department in
general, and Officer Kennedy in specific, on the abuse of authority and excessive use of

foree.

These complaints should have placed the City of Gainesville and the Gainesville Police
Department on notice that their officers, specifically Officer Kennedy, were acting

negligently and unlawfuily.

That Mr. Moore was arrested on August 26, 2007 and charged with the offenses of
Resisting Officer Without Violence, Refusal to sign a Uniform Traffic Citation and

Possession of open Container, in Alachua County, Florida.

That Mr. Moore, retained legal representation in the amount of $4,000.00 and costs.

Mr. Moore, by and through his legal counsel (Mr. Haynes), filed a Motion to Dismiss

{challenging the sufficiency of the evidence and the reason for the seizure and arrest).

. Before a hearing could be conducted on the Motion, the State filed a notice of no

formation/nolle prosequi to all but one count, however, the Court subsequently

dismissed the remaining count at trial based on the details within the Motion to Dismiss.

Upon reviewing the record the Court granted the Motion to Dismiss ruling that Officer

Kennedy and the State did not have probable cause arrest Mr. Moore for Resisting or



12.

14,

15.

16.

17.

Obstruction and Officer. Mr. Moore never challenged the fact that he offered resistance,
but that his resistance was lawfblly excused and justified where Officer Kennedy was
neither engaged in the lawful execution of a legal duty, to wit: was making an arrest that

was not based upon probable cause. See exhibit A.

The City of Gainesville was placed on notice, pursuant to Fla, Stat. § 786.28(6)(u) of Mr.

Moore’s intent to sue for damages related to his unlawful arrest.

- On August 28, 2009, the City of Gainesville denied liability. See exhibit B. Also at the

time of the filing of this complaint, the six month statutory pertod precluding the filing of

a complaint has expired.

PARTIES
Plaintiff, ELVAN MOORE 11, was at all relevant times a resident of Seminole County,

Florida.

Defendant CITY OF GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA was at all relevant times a municipal
corporation in the State of Florida and was the employer of Chief Norman Botsford, and

Officer Kennedy.

Defendant CHIEF NORMAN BOTSFORD, was at all relevant times the Chief of Police

of Gainesville, Florida, The current Chief of Police of Gainesvilie, Florida is Tony Jones.

Defendant OFFICER KENNEDY, at all relevant and material fimes was a pelice officer

with the City of Gainesville Police Department. The facts giving rise to Mr. Moore’s



18,

i9.

20.

21.

22.

unlawful arrest and fo this complaint occurred in the City of Gainesville, county of

Alachua, and State of Florida.

Defendant Kennedy is also being sued in his individual capacity as a law enforcement

officer for the City of Gainesville, Florida.

Unless otherwise stated, all acts of the Defendants alleged herein were within the course

and scope of their authority and the course of their employment.

FACTS REGARDING ARREST

Officer Kennedy of the Gainesville Police Department says that he observed the Plaintiff,
Mr. Moore, walking down the sidewalk of a public street with clear plastic cup in his

hand whose contents appeared brownish in color.

Mr. Moore then poured out the contents of the cup into the nearby grass and dropped the

cup on the ground.

Officer Kennedy then grabbed the cup and alleges that he knew its contents were
alcoholic (specifically Crown Royal and Coke) just from “sight, smell, and personal

experience”,

3. Officer Kennedy claims to have issued Mr, Moore a Notice to Appear for possessing an

open container and a Uniform Traffic Citation for Littering. Mr. Moore subsequently
requested that he be allowed to speak with his attorney before signing any document(s) in

that he had not done anything wrong. This request was denied by Officer Kennedy.



24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

The “open container” charge is a violation of a municipal ordinance and not a state

statute.

Furthermore, Officer Kennedy took Mr. Moore’s request as a refusal to sign.  Officer

Kennedy then attempted to place Mr. Moore under arrest.

Officer Kennedy claimed that Mr. Moore resisted by pulling his body away and curling

his hands underneath his body.

Officer Kennedy’s caused Mr. Moore to be thrown to the ground after requesting to
speak with his attorney and allegedly resisting. He was subsequently punched and kicked
several times by Officer Kennedy and possibly other officers which resulted in numerous

injuries.

Mr. Moore suffered a dislocated jaw, chipped teeth, a cut on his left wrist, cuts on his
face, numbness and immobility of his left thumb, cut on his left foot and swelling of his

head and face. See Exhibif C.

While Officer Kennedy initially claimed that a Notice to Appear must be signed, after
further questioning Officer Kennedy testified that it is the policy of GPD and not the state

law that requires a signature from the Defendant.

Mr. Moore had no legal obligation to sign the notice to appear. Furthermore, Mr. Moore
never actually refused to sign anything; he just requested to call his attorney before

signing and was attacked by Officer Kennedy and several other officers.



3L

32.

33.

34.

35.

Officer Kennedy had no probable cause to arrest Mr. Moore for Resisting or Opposing
Officer without violence in that there was no indication that Mr. Moore had committed or
was about to commit a criminal act or municipal ordinance violation. Therefore Kennedy
was not engaged in the lawful execution of a legal duty when he demanded Mr. Moore
sign a document he claimed to be a summons and the Uniform Traffic Citation for a non-

traffic violation.

It is clear, based upon the Stale Attorney’s decision to dismiss the charges for
“possession of open container of alcohol and refusal to sign citation for civil summons,”
that Officer Kennedy was not justified in detaining and arresting Mr. Moore’s. The

Plaintiff asserts that the cup he was holding contained a clear liquid which was water.

Therefore, Mr. Moore could not be lawfully charged with resisting or obstruction where
there was no legal requirement for him to comply with Officer Kennedy’s request to sign

the Notice to Appear.

[t is irrefutable that the Gainesville Police Department has a policy to issue citations and
make arrest upon probable cause. Also the Gainesville Police Department has an implied
policy to harass and arrest African American Males in the downtown area. In
erroneously implementing the policy, the deputy violated Mr. Moore’s constitutional
rights who is a graduate of the University of Florida wand was not a “local thug™ as

perceived by officer Kennedy.

The Plaintiff asserts that the cup he was holding contained a clear liquid which was

water,



CAUSES OF ACTION

FEDERAL CONSTITUTIONAL CLAIMS

COUNT I: 42 U.S.C. § 1983

MATERIAL MISREPRESENTATIONS IN THE CHARGING AFFIDAVIT (798)

36.

37.

38.

40.

41.

IN VIOLATION OF THE FOURTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS
Defendant Kennedy

Plaintiff re-alleges and reaffirms paragraphs 1 through 35.

Plamtiff has a clearly established constitutional right to be free from unreasonable
searches and seizures under the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendment to the United States

Constitution.

Defendant acted under color of state law when he arrested Mr. Moore without probable

cause.

. Defendant also acted under color of law when he deprived Mr. Moore his right to consult

with his attorney who had access to on his cell phone, while Mr. Moore was being
commanded to perform an act with legal consequences. This violated his constitutional

right to counsel,

Defendants made material misrepresentations and omissions in the Charging Affidavit
(798) about the defendant’s refusal to sign the UTC and the NTA and omitted the fact

that Mr. Moore was brutally beaten by Officer Kennedy and several other officers.

The material misrepresentations and omission were deliberately made with an utter
disregard for the truth and without such misrepresentations or omissions, the State of

Florida would have never filed an information and pursued criminal charges



42. A reasonable official would understand that making deliberate or reckless
misrepresentations in a charging affidavit in order to justify an arrest of a criminal
defendant violates the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States
Constitution. The Defendant’s conduct lies so obviously at the very core of what the
Constitution prohibits that the unlawfulness of the conduct was readily apparent to the

Defendant.

43. These material and deliberate misrepresentations and omissions deprived the Plaintiff of
his right to be free from unreasonable searches and seizures under the Fourth and

Fourteenth Amendments.
44. Defendant Kennedy was the affiant of the charging affidavit.

45. Plaintiff suffered damages as a result of Defendant’s conduct.

46. Plaintiff has performed all conditions precedent to be performed or the conditions have

occurred.

WHEREF ORE, the Plaintiff demands judgment for damages against Defendant Kennedy,
exemplary damages, costs of this action, and such other and further relief as the Court deems

appropriate.



COUNT H: 42 U.S.C. § 1983
MALICIOUS PROSECUTION IN VIOLATION
OF THI FOURTH, FIFTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS

Defendants Chief Norman Botsford as Chief of the Gainesville Police Department and City of

47.

48.

49.

51

Gainesville by and through Officer Kennedy
That each of the foregoing paragraphs 1 through 35 are re-alleged and reaffirmed and

incorporated herein.

That on or about August 26, 2007, the Defendant, ROBERT KENNEDY, acting in his
official capacity as officer, employee and servant of the Defendant, NORMAN
BOTSFORD, Chiet of the City of Gainesville Police Department in Gainesville, Florida,
and by virtue of his office, did, wrongfully and unlawfully, and without any order,
warrant or process of any Court authorizing him to do so, did cause the plaintiff, ELVAN
MOORE 11, to be wrongfully and forcibly arrested, imprisoned and restrained of his

liberty in the Alachua County Jail.

That the criminal proceeding against the Plaintiff, ELVAN MOORE I, was nolle prossed
as to two counts on November 26, 2007 and dismissed as (o the count of resisting without
violence on or about December 19, 2007. This dismissal was a bona fide termination in

favor of the Plaintiff.

. That the Defendants were the legal cause of the criminal proceeding against the Plaintiff,

That there was an absence of probable cause for the initiation of criminal charges against

the Plaintiff in that there was no contraband to support the open container charge, no



vehicle or cup to support the UTC for littering, and the law does not require a individual

to sign a notice to appear.

52. That the Defendants acted with malice when they caused the indictment to be returned.

53. That as a direct and proximate result of the aforesaid acts and conduct, the Plaintiff,
ELVAN MOORE 1I, suffered and will continue to suffer in the future, physical
inconvenience and discomfort, physical suffering, mental pain and suffering,
embarrassment, humiliation, deprivation of liberty and property, disgrace, and injury to
his good name, loss of time, losses of business and employment, expenses incurred as a

result of unlawful detainment, and losses to business reputation.

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff demands judgment for damages against Defendants,
exemplary damages, cost of this action, and such other and further relief as the Court deems
appropriate.

COUNTII: 42 U.S.C, § 1983

POLICY, PRACTICE OR PROCEDURE
Defendants Botsford as Chief of Gainesville Police Department and City of Gainesville, Florida

54. Plaintiff re-alleges and reaffirm paragraphs 1 - 35.

55. The City of Gainesville, Gainesville Police Department, and Chief Norman Botsford has
a policy, practice and/or custom which:
a. Permits, encourages, and praises the development and use of evidence illegally obtained

by unlawful searches and seizures in criminal prosecutions of persons charged with
criminal conduct;

10



b.

56.

57.

38.

Permits, encourages, and praises employees to intentionally or with reckless disregard for
the truth to misrepresent material facts in arrest affidavits (798s) in order to
support/justify the reason for seizures and arrests;

Permits, encourages, and praises employees who use excessive force in seizing and
arresting an individual by continuing their employment;

Permits Gainesviile Police Department employees to conduct seizures and arrests that are
not based upon probable cause or reasonable suspicion;

Has a standing policy to make arrest;
Encourages harassment and arrest of young African Americans; and

Fails to adequately train and/or supervise Gainesville Police Department employees to
prevent a through f.

These policies, practices, or customs of Defendants City of Gainesville, Gainesville
Police Department, and Chief Norman Botsford caused a violation of the Plaintiff’s
constitutional rights under the Fourth Amendment to be free from unreasonable searches
and seizures caused by criminal charges based on false or deliberately fabricated
evidence and under the Fifth Amendment not to be subjected to criminal charges on false

or deliberately fabricated evidence.

These policies, practices and customs were implemented and controlled by Defendants

City of Gainesville, Gainesville Police Department, and Chief Norman Botsford.

Defendants City of Gainesville, Gainesville Police Department, and Chief Norman
Botsford were deliberately indifferent to the fact that this policy would deprive the
Plaintiff of his Fourth Amendment to be free from unreasonable searches and seizures
and his Fifth Amendment right not to be subject to criminal charges that is

supported/justified by false, fabricated, misrepresented and omitted evidence.

it



59. Defendants City of Gainesville, Gainesville Police Department, and Chief Norman
Botsford not only failed to adequately punish the Gainesville Police Department
employees responsible for developing and using false, fabricated, misrepresented, and

omitted evidence to support an investigation; but Defendants also encouraged it.

60. These policies, practices or customs were the moving force behind the violation of
Plaintiff’s Fourth Amendment right 1o be free from unreasonable searches and seizures
and Plaintiffs” Fifth Amendment right not to be subject to criminal charges that is

supported/justified by false, fabricated, misrepresented and omitied evidence.

61. Defendants knew or should have known that their policies/customs would be

applied/misapplied and cause Plaintiff to suffer damages.

62. Plaintiff suffered damages as a resuit of the Defendants’ conduct.

63. Plaintiff has performed all conditions precedents to be performed or the conditions have

occurred.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment for damages against Defendants, exemplary

damages, costs of this action, and such other and further relief as the Court deems appropriate.

COUNTIV: 42 U.S.C. §1983
FAINLURE TO TRAIN AND/GR SUPERVISE
Detendants City of Gainesville, Chief Norman Botsford as chief of
Gainesville Police Department

64. Plaintiff re-alleges and reaffirms paragraphs 1- 35.

12



65.

66

67.

68.

69.

70.

71.

Defendant Chief Norman Botsford, and the City of Gainesville failed to adequately train
and/or supervise the Defendants’ employees in the proper manner to make arrests only

upon probable cause a crime or ordinance violation was committed. .

. The need for such supervision and training was plainly obvious or should have been

plainly obvious to the City of Gainesville and Gainesville Police Depariment
policymakers, as evidenced by the fact that Officer Kennedy has had numerous

complaints filed against him for use of excessive force and police brutality

This failure to supervise and train was an official policy, practice, and procedure of the

City of Gainesville and Gainesville Police Department.

The failure to supervise and train caused the Defendants to repeatedly violate the
Plaintift’s rights under the Fourth Amendment to be free from unreasonable searches and

th

seizures and Plaintiffs’ Fifth Amendment (through the 14" Amendment) right not to be

subject to criminal charges that are supported/justified by false, fabricated,

misrepresented and omitted evidence.

The Defendants were deliberately indifferent to the need for supervision and training.

The Defendants knew, or should have known, that thetr failure to supervise and train

reflected deliberate indifterence.

The Plaintiff suffered damages as a result of the Defendants’ conduct.

i3



72.

Plaintiff has performed all conditions precedents to be performed or the conditions have

occurred,

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment for damages against Defendants, exemplary

damages, costs of this action, and such other and further refief as the Court deems appropriate.

73.

74.

75.

76.

7.

COUNTV: 42 U.S.C. § 1983
BATTERY
Defendant Kennedy

Plaintiff re-alleges and reaffirms paragraphs 1- 33,

That on or about August 26, 2007, the Defendant, ROBERT KENNEDY, acting in his
official capacity as officer, employee and servant of the Defendant, NORMAN
BOTSEFORD, Chief of the City of Gainesville Police Department in Gainesville, Florida,
committed a battery upon ELVAN MOORE II by slamming him on the ground, punching
and kicking him in the face multiple times and directing other City of Gainesville

Officers to do the same, while arresting Mr. Moore without probable cause.

This battery was in violation of section 784.03 of the Florida Statutes, which recognizes

as a crime the battery committed by ROBERT KENNEDY upon ELVAN MOORE 11.

As a result of the aforementioned occurrence, Plaintiff suffered physical and emotional

trauma.

As a direct and proximate result of the Defendant’s actions, Plaintiff has experienced and

will continue to experience physical and emotional pain and suffering.

14



78. ROBERT KENNEDY intentionally and recklessly battered ELVAN MOORLE II, which

was the direct cause of the injury to ELVAN MOORE [1.

79. The actions by ROBERT KENNEDY of attacking the Plaintiff at the time and place set
forth above were done intentionally, and with the express and exclusive purpose of
causing grievous and physical injury to the Plamtiff. Therefore, causing the Plaintiff to

be in fear of further physical injury at the hands of ROBERT KENNEDY.

80. As a direct and proximate result of ROBERT KENNEDY s battery on ELVAN MOORE
11, he has suffered and will continue to suffer severe and permanent traumatic injuries,

including mental, psychological and emotional damages.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff ELVAN MOORE [T demands judgment against Defendant
ROBERT KENNEDY for actual and compensatory damages, costs, attorney’s fees, and such

other and further relief as this Court deems just and proper.

STATE LAW CLAIMS

COUNT VI: - FALSE ARREST
Defendants Chief Botsford, and City of Gainesville, Florida by and through Officer Kennedy

81. Plaintiff re-alleges and reaffirms paragraphs - 35, and are incorporated herein.

82. That on or about August 26, 2007, the Defendants, ROBERT KENNEDY, acting in his
official capacity as officer, employee and servant of the Defendant, NORMAN
BOTSFORD, Chief of the City of Gainesville Police Department in Gainesville, Florida,

and by virtue of his office, did cause the Plaintiff, ELVAN MOORE 11, to be wronglully



8§3.

84.

85.

86.

87.

arrested on the sidewalk of the 100 block of West University Avenue in Gainesville,

Florida.

That on said date, the Defendant, ROBERT KENNEDY, acting in his official capacity as
officer, employee and servant of the Defendant, NORMAN BOTSFORD, Chief of the
City of QGainesville Police Department in Gainesville, Florida, wrongfully and
unlawfully, and without any order, warrant or process of any Court authorizing him to do

s0, did cause the plaintiff, ELVAN MOORE [i, to be wrongfully and forcibly arrested.

That the Defendant, ROBERT KENNEDY, acting in his official capacity as officer,
employee and servant of the Defendant, NORMAN BOTSFORD, Chief of the City of
Gainesville Police Department in Gainesville, Florida, abused the power of his office,
and his conduct with respect to the Plaintift, ELVAN MOORE I, was committed in bad
faith, and with willful disregard of the human rights, safety and property of the Plaintiff;

in that Officer Kennedy arrested Mr. Moore without probable cause.

That the criminal proceeding against the Plammtiff, ELVAN MOORE I, was nolle prossed

by the State or dismissed by the court, resulting in a bona fide termination in his favor.

That the Defendants were the legal cause of the arrest.

That as a direct and proximate result of the aforesaid acts and conduct, the Plaintiff,
ELVAN MOORE 1, suffered and wili continue to suffer in the future, physical
inconvenience and discomfort, physical suffering, mental pain and suffering,

embarrassment, humiliation, deprivation of liberty and property, disgrace, and injury to



his good name, loss of time, losses of business and employment opportunity, expenses

incurred as a result of uniawful detainment, and losses to business reputation.

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff demands judgment for damages against Defendants,
exemplary damages, cost of this action, and such other and further relief as the Court deems
appropriate.

COUNT VII: - FALSE ARRFEST
Defendant Kennedy

88. Plaintiff re-alleges and reaffirms paragraphs 1- 35, and are incorporated herein.

89. That on or about August 26, 2007, the Defendant, ROBERT KENNEDY, acting in his
individual capacity, did cause the Plaintiff, ELVAN MOORE H, fto be wrongfully
arrested on the sidewalk of the 100 block of West University Avenue in Gainesville,

Florida.

90. That on said date, the Defendant, ROBERT KENNEDY, acting in his individual
capacity, wrongfully and uniawfully, and without any order, warrant or process of any
Court authorizing him to do so, did cause the plaintiff, ELVAN MOORE TI, to be

wrongfully and foreibly arrested without probable cause.

91. That the criminal proceeding against the Plaintuff, ELVAN MOORE II, was nolle prossed

by the State or dismissed by the court, resulting in a bona fide termination in his favor.

92. That the Defendant was the [egal cause of the arrest
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93. That the Defendant, ROBERT KENNEDY, acting in his individual capacity, abused the
power of his office, and his conduct with respect to the Plaintiff, ELVAN MOORE 11,
was committed in bad faith, and with willful disregard of the human rights, safety and

property of the Plaintiff.

94. That as a direct and proximate result of the aforesaid acts and conduct, the Plaintiff,
ELVAN MOORE 1I, suffered and will continue to suffer in the future, physical
inconvenience and discomfort, physical suffering, mental pain and suffering,
embarrassment, humiliation, deprivation of liberty and property, disgrace, and injury to
his good name, loss of time, losses of business and employment, expenses incurred as a

result of unlawful detainment, and losses to business reputation.

WHEREFORE, the Plamtiff demands judgment for damages against Defendants,
exemplary damages, cost of this action, and such other and further relief as the Court deems
appropriate.

COUNT VHI:

FALSE IMPRISONMENT
Defendants Chief Botsford, and City of Gainesville, Florida by and through Officer Kennedy

95. Plaintiff re-alleges and reaffirms paragraphs 1- 35, and are incorporated herein.

96. That on or about August 26, 2007, the Defendant, ROBERT KENNEDY, acting in his
official capacity as officer, employee and servant of the Defendant, NORMAN

BOTSFORD, Chief of the City of Gainesville Police Department in Gainesville, Florida,
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and by virtue of his office, did, wrongfully and uniawfully, and without any order,
warrant or process of any Court authorizing him te do so, did cause the plaintiff, ELVAN
MOORE I, to be wrongfully and forcibly arrested without probable cause, which lead to

Mr. Moore being imprisoned and restrained of his liberty in the Alachua County Jail.

97. That as a direct and proximate result of the aforesaid acts and conduct, the PlaintifT,
ELVAN MOORE 1I, suffered and will continue to suffer in the future, physical
inconvenience and discomfort, physical suffering, mental pain and suffering,
embarrassment, humiliation, deprivation of liberty and property, disgrace, and injury to
his good name, loss of time, losses of business and employment opportunity, expenses

incurred as a result of unlawful detainment, and losses to business reputation.

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff demands judgment for damages against Defendants,
exemplary damages, cost of this action, and such other and further relief as the Court deems
appropriate.

COUNT IX: - FALSE IMPRISONMENT
Defendant Kennedy

98. Plaintiff re-alleges and reaftirms paragraphs 1- 35, and are incorporated herein.

99. That on or about August 26, 2007, the Defendant, ROBERT KENNEDY, acting in his
individual capacity, and by virtue of his office, did, wrongfully and unlawfuily, and
without any order, warrant or process of any Court authorizing him to do so, did cause

the plaintiff, ROBERT KENNEDY, to be wrongfully and forcibly arrested without
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probable cause, which lead to Mr. Moore being imprisoned and restrained of his liberty in

the Alachua County Jail.

100. That as a direct and proximate result of the aforesaid acts and conduct, the
Plaintiff, ROBERT KENNEDY, suffered and will continue to suffer in the future,
physical inconvenience and discomfort, physical suffering, mental pain and suffering,
embarrassment, humiliation, deprivation of liberty and property, disgrace, and injury to
his good name, loss of time, losses of business and employment opportunity, expenses

incurred as a result of unfawful detainment, and losses to business reputation.

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff demands judgment for damages against Defendants,

exemplary damages, cost of this action, and such other and further relief as the Court deems

appropriate.
COUNT X: - MALICIOUS PROSECUTION
Defendant Kennedy
101, Plaintiff re-alleges and reaffirms paragraphs 1- 35, and are incorporated herein.
102, That on or about August 26, 2007, the Defendant, ROBERT KENNEDY, acting

in his individual capacity, and by virtue of his office, did, wrongfully and untawfully did,
wrongfully and unlawfully, and without any order, warrant or process of any Court
authorizing him to do so, did cause the plaintiff, ELVAN MOORE 1], to be wrongfully

and forcibly arrested, imprisoned and restrained of his liberty in the Alachua County Jail.



103. That the criminal proceeding against the Plaintiff, ELVAN MOORE II, was nolle
prossed as to two counts on November 26, 2007 and dismissed as to the count of resisting
without violence on or about December 19, 2007. These dismissals were a bona fide

termination in favor of the Plaintiff.

104, That the Defendant was the legal cause of the criminal proceeding against the
Plaintiff.
105. That there was an absence of probable cause or reasonable suspicion for seizing

and arresting the Plaintiff.

106. That the Defendant acted with malice when he caused the indictment to be
returned by falsely, recklessly, and maliciously misrepresenting the facts concerning the

arrest.,

107. That as a direct and proximate result of the aforesaid acts and conduct, the
Plaintitf, ELVAN MOORE I, suffered and will continue to suffer in the future, physical
inconvenience and discomfort, physical suffering, mental pain and suffering,
embarrassment, humiliation, deprivation of liberty and property, disgrace, and injury to
his good name, loss of time, losses of business and employment opportunity, expenses

incurred as a result of unlawful detainment, and losses to business reputation.
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WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff demands judgment for damages against Defendants,

exemplary damages, cost of this action, and such other and further relief as the Court deems

appropriate.
COUNT XI:
INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF SEVERE EMOTIONAL DISTRIESS
All Defendants
108. Plaintiff re-alleges and reaffirms paragraphs 1-35 and are incorporated herein.
109. Defendants’ conduct was intentional or reckless in that they intended their actions

when they knew or should have known that their actions would likely cause the Plaintiff

severe emotional distress.

110. The Defendants’” conduct of fabricating evidence, making misleading statements
and omissions, conducting unlawful seizures, encouraging such actions, and failing to
train and supervise the manner in which to conduct arrest based upon probable cause; was

outrageous, beyond ail bounds of decency, atrocious and utterly intolerable in a civilized

commumnity.
111. The Defendants’ conduct caused emotional and physical distress to the Plamntiff.
112, The Plaintift’s emotional and physical distress was severe.
1i3. Plaintiff has performed all conditions precedents to be performed or the

conditions have occurred.

o
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WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment for damages against Defendants, exemplary

damages, cost of this action, and such other and further relief as the Court deems appropriate.

COUNT XII: BATTERY
Defendant Kennedy in his Official Capacity

114. Plaintiff realleges and reaffirms paragraphs 1- 35.

115, That on or about August 26, 2007, the Defendant, ROBERT KENNEDY, acting
in his official capacity as officer, employee and servant of the Defendant, NORMAN
BOTSFORD, Chief of the City of Gainesville Police Department in Gainesville, Florida,
committed a battery upon ELVAN MOORE 1I by slamming him on the ground, punching
and kicking him in the face multiple times while attempting to arrest Mr. Moore without

probable cause.

116. This battery was in violation of section 784.03 of the Florida Statutes, which
recognizes as a crime the battery committed by ROBERT KENNEDY upon ELVAN
MOORE I where KENNEDY intentionally siruck and directed and cause others to

strike Plaintiff against his will.

117. As a result of the aforementioned occurrence, Plaintiff suffered physical and

emotional travma.

118. As a direct and proximate result of the Defendant’s actions, Plaintiff has

experienced and will continue to experience physical and emotional pain and suffering.



119. ROBERT KENNEDY intentionaily and recklessly battered ELVAN MOORE i,

which was the direct cause of the injury to ELVAN MOORE 1.

120, The actions by ROBERT KENNEDY of attacking the Plaintiff at the time and
place set forth above were done intentionally, and with the express and exclusive purpose
of causing grievous and physical injury to the Plaintiff. Therefore, causing the Plaintiff

to be in fear of further physical injury at the hands of ROBERT KENNEDY.

121. As a direct and proximate result of ROBERT KENNEDY s battery on ELVAN
MOORE II, he has suffered and will continue to suffer severe and permanent traumatic

injuries, including mental, psychological and emotional damages.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff ELVAN MOORE I demands judgment against Defendant
ROBERT KENNEDY for actual and compensatory damages, costs, attorney’s fees, and such

other and further relief as this Court deems just and proper.

COUNT XIII: BATTERY
Defendant Kennedy in his Individual Capacity

122. Plaintiff re-alleges and reaffirms paragraphs 1- 35.

123. That on or about August 26, 2007, the Defendant, ROBERT KENNEDY, acting
in his individual capacity as officer, employee and servant of the Defendant, NORMAN
BOTSFORD, Chief of the City of Gainesville Police Department in Gainesville, Florida,
committed a battery upon ELVAN MOORE II by slamming him on the ground, punching
and kicking him in the face multiple times while attempting to arrest Mr. Moore without

probable cause.
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124, This battery was in violation of section 784.03 of the Florida Statutes, which
recognizes as a crime the battery committed by ROBERT KENNEDY upon ELVAN
MOORE Il where KENNEDY intentionally struck and directed and cause others to

strike Plaintiff against his will

125. As a result of the aforementioned occurrence, Plaintiff suffered physical and

emotional trauma.

126. That the Defendant, ROBERT KENNEDY, acting in his individual capacity,
abused the power of his office, and his conduct with respect to the Plaintiff, ELVAN
MOORE 11, was committed in bad faith, and with willful disregard of the human rights,

safety and property of the Plaintiff.

127. As a direct and proximate result of the Defendant’s actions, Plaintiff has

experienced and will continue to experience physical and emotional pain and suffering.

128. ROBERT KENNEDY intentionally and recklessiy battered ELVAN MOORE 11,

which was the direct cause of the injury to ELVAN MOORE IL

129. The actions by ROBERT KENNEDY of attacking the Plaintiff at the time and
place set forth above were done intentionally, and with the express and exclusive purpose
of causing grievous and physical injury to the Plaintiff. Therefore, causing the Plaintiff

to be in fear of further physical injury at the hands of ROBERT KENNEDY,
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130. As a direct and proximate result of ROBERT KENNEDY’s battery on ELVAN
MOORE I, he has suffered and will continue to suffer severe and permanent traumatic

injuries, including mental, psychological and emotional damages.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff ELVAN MOORE [I demands judgment against Defendant
ROBERT KENNEDY for actual and compensatery damages, costs, attorney’s fees, and such

other and further relief as this Court deems just and proper.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury of all issues so triable.

Dated this 26" day of August 2011.

/is /

CARLUS L. HAYNES, ESQ.
Florida Bar Number: 0935611

550 Bumby Ave., Suite 280
Orlando, Florida 32803

Telephone: (407) 246-0077
Facsimile: (407) 246-0078

Email: Champi@fichtingdulaw.com
Attorney for PLAINTIFF
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Exhibit A:
Court Order Dismissing Charge
Of Resisting Without Violence and State’s Nolle Pros



IN THE COUNTY COURT OF THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
IN AND FOR ALACHUA COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATE OF FLORIDA,

Plaintiff,
V.

Case No,:2007-CT-003728-A
Citatior No.: 4855-EUL

, i

mm

THIS CAUSE HAVING COME on to be heard upon the Defendant’s ore tenus motion
for Richardson hearing, and as a Sanction for the Discovery Violation, Motion to Dismiss, and

ELVAN MOORE,
Defendant.

this Court having conduct a Evidentiary Richardson Hearing, and being otherwise duly advised
in the premises, it is:

THE COURT’S FINDINGS are as follows:
1.

That Officer Kennedy failed to submit the purported and alleged ‘“Notice to Appear” to
the State.

B
Zoc o
. AL= m )T
2. That the Defendant made timely requests and demands for the document. *2 3" P f
. . . O EFos B Tk
3. That the State failed to deliver the document to the Defense prior to trial. t_”‘\";‘yx — - ‘?._.\!
o E N
4, That Officer Kennedy testified that he destroyed the document. i(ﬁ_gﬁé =
Do @
5. And such constituted a discovery violation pursuant to Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.220(b).

6. And that the Defenses was severely prejudiced by such violation in that it handicapped

their ability to challenge the “lawful” execution of a legal duty; as indicated in the
special jury instruction.

7. In addition, it is expressly incorporated by reference, that citation 4855-EUL (Littering)
has been consolidated by Defendant’s Motion to Consolidate.
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND ADJUGED that:

The Defendant’s motion is hereby GRANTED, and charges in the above styled cause

shall be dismissed with prejudice As a sanction of said discovery violation, pursuant to Fla. R,

— ¢



Crim, P. 3.220(n), as well as other considerations addressed before the Court.

DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers/Open Court in Gainesville, Alachua County,

Florida, this _Lﬂday of @Q(_ , 2007.
Kmm M, Aﬁm

"COURT JUDGE

Copies to:
Carlus L. Haynes, 550 Bumby Ave., Suite 280, Orlando, Florida 32803

Office of the State Attorney, 120 West University Ave. Gainesvifle, Florida 32602



INTHE COUNTY COURT OF 1HE BIGHTH HNMOIAL CIRCUIT '
INAMIY FOR ALACHUA COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA Oz Nuszber: LRGP YOR TR A
Plaimtiff ORA GPDOTv062
V. TRAFFE DIVISION

HEYARN BMO0RY
Detendant.

CASE ACTION REFORT
NOLLENG INFORMATIONEINAL DISPOSTFION

O B7ZB77007 the GAINESYILLE FOLICE DEPAR TIMENT aprested the above named defendant with:
{oriplnad chargaX sy

L} RESIBTING CEFICER WITHOUT VIOLENCE
21 POBSERSION OF OPEN € ONTAINER Gf ALOOHOL - O1ry OF GANESVILLE
3) REFUBAL OF GITATION FOR CIVIL BUMMONS

The fuets of the case fiave bren reviewed by this office;

The Staw of Florida, by the undersigned authsrity, saters o NOLLE PROSEGUING
INEORMATION (HEIMISEAL) in the above entitied netion 3% o

{ounm RBenson
13 POSBSESSION Oy CHREDE CONNTA BN BE {3 ALCOWOL _ 2% T BE FTLED AT LATER Daclie
B REPUSAL TGO RION CITHTION POl OV SUIMBIONS T T BEFL Y AT LAYTER DAaTe

EVIDENCE:
The Bvidence Custodian s hereby muhoriznd to:

(o Retain custody of the evidenes voty) mstructed otherswise,
{3 Rispose of the evidencs i acosrdance with & rorida Statis,

THEREBY CERTIFY that o Lopy deothas been forsinked 1o CARLTUN L HIAYY LS, B0 By
AVENUE, SUTTE 180, ORIANDC, FL 32803 by Inter Offne Msil, tiy m%ﬁiag of Movemiter, 257,

WL LIAM P, CERVONE
STATE ATTORNEY

,,.........:;uf.;;ﬁ“ o 9 =TI % .............. -
BYRUONTFISAGG ' ::)
Assistant Stale Arorney

Florida Bar Number: 00147118

Clerk. Nure Attorney's Dffice Defistias Comgs) EETH
INVESTIGATIVE AGENCY - OPD (HOBERY J RENNEDY - 549y Fuidenee Castodiag -

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CALL INVESTIGATOR BPENCER MANN . (3523 374 3690
REMARKS -




Exhibit B:
Letter from City of Gainesville

Denying Liability



Exhibit C:

Report Showing Injuries Suffered
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